
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
District Office, 18966 Ferretti Road 

Groveland, CA 95321 
(209) 962-7161 www.gcsd.org

AGENDA  
December 12, 2023 

10:00 a.m. 

BOARD MEMBERS AND PUBLIC MAY ATTEND IN PERSON AT DISTRICT OFFICE OR VIA 
VIDEO CONFERENCE AS DETAILED BELOW: 

Under the Governor’s Executive Order N-25-20 and Order N-29-20, members of the Board of 
Directors can participate by videoconference or teleconference. Accessibility Requirements, if 
you need swift special assistance during the Board meeting, please call (209) 962-7161. The 
District office is open to the public at this time from 9am to 4:30pm Monday through Thursday 
and 9am to 4pm on Friday (Closed between 12pm-2pm).  All members of the public seeking to 
observe and/or to address the GCSD Board may participate in the meeting telephonically or 
otherwise electronically in the manner described below: 

HOW TO OBSERVE AND PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING:  
Computer, tablet or smartphone: Watch the live streaming of the meeting from a computer by 
navigating to  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7688070165 using a computer with internet access 
that meets Zoom's system requirements  

Telephone: Listen to the meeting live by calling Zoom at (253) 215-8782 or (301) 715-8592.  
Enter the Meeting ID# 279-281-953 followed by the pound (#) key. More phone numbers can be 
found on Zoom's website at https://zoom.us/u/abb4GNs5xM  if the line is busy.  

Mobile: Log in through the Zoom mobile app on a smartphone and enter Meeting ID# 279-281-
953. 

HOW TO SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Written/ Read Aloud: Please email your comments to board@gcsd.org, write "Public 
Comment" in the subject line. In the body of the email, include the agenda item number and 
title, as well as your comments. If you would like your comment to be read aloud at the meeting 
(not to exceed three minutes at staff's cadence), prominently write "Read Aloud at Meeting" at 
the top of the email. 

Telephonic / Electronic Comments: During the meeting, the Board President or designee will 
announce the opportunity to make public comments by voice and in writing, and identify the cut 
off time for submission of written comments. Comments can be emailed in advance of the Board 
meeting and up to the time of Board consideration of the item during the meeting. Send email to  
board@gcsd.org, and write "Public Comment" in the subject line. Once you have joined the 
Board meeting online using Zoom, public comments can also be submitted using the Chat 
function while in the Zoom Meeting. In the body of the email or Chat, include the agenda item 
number and its title, as well as your comments. The Board President will also public comment to 
be made verbally prior to consideration of each agenda item, and will explain the procedure for 
making verbal comments during the meeting.  Once the public comment period is closed, 
comments timely received in advance of consideration of the agenda item will be read aloud 
prior to Board action on the matter. Comments received after the close of the public comment 
period will be added to the record after the meeting. 

1

http://www.gcsd.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7688070165
https://zoom.us/u/abb4GNs5xM
mailto:board@gcsd.org
mailto:board@gcsd.org


GCSD REGULAR MEETING AGENDA   Page 2 of 4 
December 12, 2023, 10:00 a.m. 
 

ALL AGENDA MATERIAL ARE AVAILABLE ON THE DISTRICT WEBSITE AT WWW.GCSD.ORG OR MAY BE 
INSPECTED IN THE GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT OFFICE AT 18966 FERRETTI ROAD, 
GROVELAND, CALIFORNIA  
Any person who has any questions concerning this agenda may contact the District Secretary.  In compliance with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District at 209-962-7161.  
Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this 
meeting. (28FR35.102-35.104 ADA Title 11) 

 
ACCESSIBILITY INFORMATION: 

Board Meetings are accessible to people with disabilities and others who need assistance. 
Individuals who need special assistance or a disability-related modification or accommodation 
(including auxiliary aids or services) to observe and/or participate in this meeting and access 
meeting-related materials should contact Rachel Pearlman, Board Secretary, at least 48 hours 
before a regular meeting at (209) 962-7161 or rpearlman@gcsd.org. Advanced notification will 
enable the District to swiftly resolve such requests to ensure accessibility. 
 

AGENDA MATERIAL: 
Physical copies of agenda material will not be available at the meeting. All agenda material can 
be accessed on the District Board Meeting Webpage at https://www.gcsd.org/board-meetings-
meeting-documents. Physical copies can be obtained through the District office once made 
available.  
 

PUBLIC RECORDS: 
Public records that relate to any item on the open session agenda for a meeting are available 
for public inspection. Those records that are distributed after the agenda posting deadline for 
the meeting are available for public inspection at the same time they are distributed to all or a 
majority of the members of the Board. The Board has designated the District's website located 
at https://www.gcsd.org as the place for making those public records available for inspection. 
The documents may also be obtained by calling the District office. 
 

  

2

http://www.gcsd.org/
mailto:rpearlman@gcsd.org
https://www.gcsd.org/board-meetings-meeting-documents
https://www.gcsd.org/board-meetings-meeting-documents
https://www.gcsd.org/


REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
District Office, 18966 Ferretti Road 

Groveland, CA 95321 
(209) 962-7161 www.gcsd.org  

 

 
 

TELECONFERENCE AGENDA 
December 12, 2023 

10:00 a.m. 
 

 
Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Roll Call of Board Members  
Nancy Mora, President 
Janice Kwiatkowski, Vice President 
John Armstrong, Director 
Spencer Edwards, Director 
Robert Swan, Director 
 

1. Approve Order of Agenda 
2. Public Comment 

Members of the public are appreciated for taking the time to attend this meeting and 
provide comments on matters of District business. Public comments are subject to a 3-
minute time limit; 10 minutes on an individual topic. Although no action can be taken on 
items not listed on the agenda, please know we are listening carefully to your comments.     

3. Information Items 
Brief reports may be provided by District staff and/or Board members as information on matters of general interest. No action will 
be taken by the Board during Reports, however items discussed may be recommended for discussion and action on a future 
agenda. Public comments will be taken after each report is provided. 

A. Staff Reports 
i. Fire Department Report 
ii. CERT Report 
iii. General Manager’s Report 
iv. Operations Manager’s Report 
v. Administrative Services Manager’s Report 

B. Proclamations  
i. Recognition of Anthony Trujillo for his 14 Years of Service to the Groveland 

Community Services District 
ii. Recognition of Steve Buie for his 4 Years of Service to the Groveland 

Community Services District 
iii. Recognition of Janice Kwiatkowski for her 6 Years of Service to The 

Groveland Community Services District 
iv. Recognition of Spencer Edwards for his 6 Years of Service to the Groveland 

Community Services District 
v. Recognition of John Armstrong for his 13 Years of Service to the Groveland 

Community Services District 
 
 
 

 

3

http://www.gcsd.org/


GCSD REGULAR MEETING AGENDA Page 4 of 4 
December 12, 2023, 10:00 a.m. 

ALL AGENDA MATERIAL ARE AVAILABLE ON THE DISTRICT WEBSITE AT WWW.GCSD.ORG OR MAY BE 
INSPECTED IN THE GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT OFFICE AT 18966 FERRETTI ROAD, 
GROVELAND, CALIFORNIA  
Any person who has any questions concerning this agenda may contact the District Secretary.  In compliance with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District at 209-962-7161.  
Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this 
meeting. (28FR35.102-35.104 ADA Title 11) 

4. Consent Calendar
Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be acted upon by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on 
these items unless a member of the Board, Staff or a member of the Public requests specific items be set aside for separate 
discussion. 

A. Approve Minutes from the November 14, 2023, Regular Meeting

B. Approve Minutes from the November 28, 2023, Special Meeting

C. Accept November 2023 Payables

D. Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to File the Emergency
Generator Replacement Project (REBID) Notice of Completion with The County of
Tuolumne

E. Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to File the Pavement
Rehabilitation (Phase 2) Project Notice of Completion with the County of Tuolumne

F. Waive Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions Except by Title

5. Old Business
(Items tabled or carried forward from a previous meeting to be considered on this agenda. The Board of Directors intends to 
consider each of the following items and may take action at this meeting. Public comment is allowed on each individual agenda 
item listed below, and such comment will be considered in advance of each Board action) 

A. None.

6. Discussion and Action Items
The Board of Directors intends to consider each of the following items and may take action at this meeting. Public comment is 
allowed on each individual agenda item listed below, and such comment will be considered in advance of each Board action. 

A. Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to sign a Subrecipient 
Agreement Between the County of Tuolumne and the District for the GCSD 
Downtown Groveland-Big Oak Flat Water System Improvements Project

B. Adoption of a Resolution Approving the Potable Water Storage and Distribution 
System Improvements Project and Authorizing Public Bidding

C. Discussion and Action Related to the Election of Board Officers for Calendar Year 
2024

7. Adjournment

4

http://www.gcsd.org/


Groveland Community Services 
District Fire Department / CALFIRE 

18966 Ferretti Road Groveland, CA 95321 
 

 
Staff Report 

December 1, 2023 
 
        To: Board of Directors 
 
    From: Andy Murphy, Assistant Chief 
  By:  Travis Chunn, Fire Captain 
 
Subject: Monthly Activity Report – November 1, 2023 – November 30, 2023 
  
 
Operations: 
 

On November 11, 2023, at 

approximately 2:45 p.m, GCSD Engine 

781 and TCFD Engine 631 responded 

to a vegetation fire at the 11000 block of 

Wards Ferry Road in Groveland, CA. 

Upon arrival Engine 781 and Engine 

631 found ½ acre of grass on fire. The 

crews quickly contained the fire to 

approximately one acre in size.  The 

cause of the fire is still under 

investigation. 

 

On November 14, 2023, at 

approximately 12:41 p.m., GCSD 

Engine 781 and TCFD Engine 631 

were part of a dispatch for a 

vegetation fire with CAL FIRE to 

the 11000 block of Grizzly Road in 

Groveland, CA. The crews were 

quickly able to contain the fire at ¼ 

acre.  The property owner had an 

active burn pile, and a gust of wind 

caused the burn pile to spread to 

the nearby vegetation. 

 

 

 

5



Groveland Community Services 
District Fire Department / CALFIRE 

18966 Ferretti Road Groveland, CA 95321 
 

 
Apparatus and Equipment:  
 

Apparatus Description Status 

Engine 781 2009 Pierce Contender In Service 

Engine 787 2000 Freightliner FL112  In Service 

Engine 783 1997 International Model 15  In Service 

Utility 786  2008 Chevrolet 2500 In Service 

 
Training: 
 
In addition to our monthly Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) curriculum and engine 
company performance standards, Battalion personnel received the following specialized 
training:  
 

• Pumping 

• Area Orientation 

• Pre Plans 

• Rope Rescue 

• RIC Operations 

• FAE Rene Herrera completed his Instructor 1 task book, and he also 
completed his Instructor 2 class at Fresno City College. 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

  

6



Groveland Community Services 
District Fire Department / CALFIRE 

18966 Ferretti Road Groveland, CA 95321 
 

Fire Department News: 

 

On November 7, 2023, our Holmatro battery-powered extrication tools had their annual 

service performed.  One leak was found on the ram, and they provided a loaner ram while 

ours was taken to have additional maintenance performed on it. 

Annual servicing ensures our emergency rescue tools are always up to date and ready to 

perform in life-threatening situations. 

While the annual service was being performed, we were able to test out the Holmatro Mini 
Cutter and the Holmatro Combi Tool.  Both of these tools are in the process of being 
purchased as part of the Office of Traffic Safety grant that we received. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

7



Groveland Community Services 
District Fire Department / CALFIRE 

18966 Ferretti Road Groveland, CA 95321 
 

 

8



STATION 78

1

0

0

24

0

0

0

1

0

3

0 Given

0 3

0

3

1

0

0

TOTAL 33 ALS

YES NO

20 4

Vehicle Accident/Pin in

Vehicle Fire

Last Call Logged Run # 15815

Auto Aid

Structure Fire Tuolumne County

Commercial Structure Fire

Vegetation Fire

Vehicle Accident

Smoke Check

Fire Other

Haz Mat

Landing Zone

Plane/Heli Crash

Public Assist

Fire Menace Standby

Nov-23

Alarm Sounding

Odor Investigation

Debris Fire

Medical Aid

INC# 14656 Vehicle Accident Old Priest Grade
INC# 15074 Vegetation Fire 11000 Grizzly Rd
INC# 15400 Medical Aid 22875 Rolling Woods Dr

TCFD ENGINE 631:  19 CALLS

33

53 56

42

33

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

GCSD Total Incidents November 2019 - 2023

486

544
555

500

525

450

500

550

600

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

GCSD Total Incidents Year-to-Date 

9



CERT Groveland/Big Oak Flat/Moccasin 
Groveland Community Services District ● 18966 Ferretti Road, Groveland CA 95321 

12/8/2023 11:15 AM GrovelandCERT@gmail.com 
FB – CERT – Groveland Area Community Emergency Response Team 

 ND – CERT – Groveland Area Community Emergency Response Team 

Winter is upon us, and the CERT Team wants to send out a friendly reminder to full 
time owners, part time owners and those who have STRs (short term rentals) to be 
prepared this winter. 

The suggestions below do not cover all aspects of winter preparedness but will 
address some of the main concerns to support a healthy Community. 

 Have enough food and water should power go down for at least 3 days.

 Fuel for generators (propane, gas depending on what you are running, keep in
mind propane deliveries can be difficult when the snow and Ice hit; order when
down to 25% to ensure you have enough propane until they arrive; gas stations
may not be able to pump gas; know which gas stations have generators. Carry
cash, power outages impact credit card machines.

 Keep your vehicle with enough gas to drive to Sonora or Oakdale.

 Keep a spare battery for your cell phones, charged and ready to go (ensure
your vehicle has a cable to charge as well).

 Establish a single point of contact for family and friends to check on you, use
text messages to avoid tying up phone lines Print a list of your key phone
numbers, should yours go down; you may borrow a phone and reach out as
needed.

 Sign up for emergency alerts from Tuolumne County Office of Emergency
Services and PG&E. Also, sign up all family cell phones including someone “off
the hill”.

 Keep a jacket and blanket in your vehicle along with a weatherproof pair of
shoes and a flashlight.

 Electric vehicle owners, ensure your vehicles are charged enough to make it
down the grade and at least as far as charging is available.

 Check on your neighbors.

 Wood or Pellet Stoves, ensure you have access to your wood/pellets and have
an ample supply.

 Electric stove – Have an alternate method to cook during the power outage.

 Check your flashlights; have spare batteries on hand.

 Ensure you have at least 5 days of your medications on hand; you may not be
able to refill if the roads are not drivable or snow/ice prevents you from
driving.

For more information, check out the Tuolumne County Office of Emergency Services 
website at https://www.tuolumnecounty.ca.gov/1524/Office-of-Emergency-Services 

10

mailto:GrovelandCERT@gmail.com


CERT Groveland/Big Oak Flat/Moccasin  
Groveland Community Services District ● 18966 Ferretti Road, Groveland CA 95321 

12/8/2023 11:16 AM GrovelandCERT@gmail.com 
 FB – CERT – Groveland Area Community Emergency Response Team 
           ND – CERT – Groveland Area Community Emergency Response Team 

Report to GCSD Board for December 2023 

• GCERT has 25 participants, 26 inquiring people and 14 fully certified members. 

• GCERT has notified FD that our Firefighter Rehab vehicle is operational. It has been 
outfit with all the necessary equipment to Go Live. (Funded by Adventist Health Grant) 
GCERT is also available for Traffic Control deployment. 

• GCERT Len Otley is our Training Officer. The next training is likely in Spring 2024. 

• GCERT will be partnering with PML S&SC for First Aid/CPR/AED training in Spring. 

• GCERT published guidelines for Winter Safety on Groveland Facebook and NextDoor 
pages. 

• Bob Asquith is registered for CERT Trainer class in March.  

 

 

 
 

11

mailto:GrovelandCERT@gmail.com


Information Provided By 
O&M Manager: Luis Melchor 

Operations Supervisor: Greg Dunn 
Maintenance Supervisor: Andrew Klein 

Administration Services Technician: Rachel Pearlman 

Operations and Maintenance Report 
November 2023 

Operations Department 

Wastewater Treatment Division 

STP Rainfall Totals by Year During Current Month (Inches) 
Season 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 

3.32 1.78 3.32 0.68 2.16 2.01 
High 0.69 High 1.38 High 0.57 High 0.70 High 0.81 

Charted Historical Monthly Influent Totals 

Influent Totals 
 Total 2.68 
Average 0.09 
High 0.14 
Low 0.06 

Effluent Totals 
Total 2.82 
Average 0.09 
High 0.15 
Low 0.07 

Reclamation Totals 
PML 
Spray Fields 
PML Season Total 
Spray Field Season Total 

Wasting Totals 
Total Inches 124 
Total Pounds 2665 
Active Accounts 1568 

12



Wastewater Treatment Division 

Routine Tasks 

• Took weekly Bac-Ts and BOD of the Chlorine Contact Chamber (CCC) and sent into Alpha Lab for
testing.

• Completed monthly Wastewater Report and sent to the State Water Resources Control Board
• Completed daily rounds and Lab.

Water Treatment Division 

Routine Tasks 

• Submitted monthly Water Treatment Report to State Water Resources Control Board
• Submitted monthly Conservation Report to State Water Boards
• Performed weekly checks and calibrations on all analyzers at 2G, BC, and AWS
• Performed monthly UV calibrations at 2G and BC.
• Took weekly Treatment Plant samples and sent them into Alpha Lab
• Monitored/sampled Distribution Tanks as needed.

13



Maintenance Department 

Water Distribution System Division 

Meter Related Services Total 
Check / Repair Meters  11 
Water Meters Installed 0 
Monthly Meter Restrictions 0 
Meter Lock offs 14 
Meter Changeouts 1 
Tenant Final Reads 2 
Re-Reads 23 
Meter Turn-Offs 3 
Meter Turn-Ons 3 
Meter Tests 0 
Winterize Meter 0 
Color/Taste/Odor/PSI Complaints 0 
Total Meter Related Issues 57 

Billed Consumption 
(Gallons) 

2023 2022 2021 

Residential 7,172,514 6,695,922 5,771,411 
Commercial 542,007 242,943 438,615 

Total 7,714,521 6,938,865 6,210,026 

Active Accounts 3286 

Charted Historical Monthly Water Consumption 

14



Maintenance and Repair Data 

After-Hours Calls (Hours) 
Water Sewer Park Other Total 

4 7 0 0 11 

Maintenance and Repair 

• Routine Tasks
o Read all District Water Meters
o Customer Service Calls (Low / High Pressures, No Water, Turn-Ons / Turn-Offs, Etc.)
o Underground Service Alert (USA) Utility Marking Program
o Weekly Pump Station Inspections at Tank 2, Tank 4, Tank 5 (Buildings, Tanks, Motors, Pumps,

Drives, Communications, Generators, and Auxiliary Equipment)
o Lock offs for non-payment.

• Tanks and Pump Stations

• Distribution System
o Repaired leaking meter washers at 19645 Golden Rock Cir.
o Repaired leaking meter washers at 13126 Mokelumne Cir.
o Repaired water service line leak at 20812 Mckinley Way.
o Repair hydrant breakaway on at fire hydrant at 19635 Chamberlain Ct.
o Replaced leaking pressure regulator valve at 11239 Wards Ferry Rd.
o Dead end flushing Units 13 and Merrill Rd areas.
o Water meter upgrade 18793 Foote St.

Description Total 
Water Main Leaks / Repairs 0 
Water Service Line Leaks / Repairs 2 
Fire Hydrant Repairs / Replacements 1 
Number of Hydrants Flushed 21 
Number of Dead-Ends Flushed 0 
Water Valves Exercised 0 
GIS Points 0 

Description Gallons 
Flushing for Water Quality 53,100 
Water Loss Due to Leaks / Breaks 18,200 

15



Pictures 

Water Service Line Repairs 

Tower Peak Ct – November 5, 2023 

Pine Mountain Dr.  – November 15, 2023 

16



   Wastewater Collection System Division 

Maintenance and Repair 

• Routine Tasks
o Weekly lift station site inspections (PMCS)
o Added degreaser and odor control to lift stations.

• Lift Stations
o Cleaned and Inspected: LS12, LS11, LS10, LS9.
o Manhole Inspections LS13 and LS5.
o LS7 hard station reboot to clear generator alarm (Run too long).
o Replaced pressure transducer at LS10.
o Replaced pressure transducer at LS15.

• Collection System
o Flushed/Jetted gravity sewer line areas.
o Groveland, Bass Pond, Twin Pines Easement monthly manhole inspections.
o Raise manhole frame and cover on State Hwy 120.
o Replace manhole frame and cover on Black St.
o Root extraction in manholes at 20460 Rock Canyon Dr and 20599 Nob Hill Cir, 20880 Elderberry

Way, and Twin Pines easement.

Pictures 

Drying Bed Rehabilitation at WWTP 

Description Total 
Manholes Inspected 342 
GIS Points 0 
Customer Complaint 1 
Odor Complaints 1 

Description Total 
Flushing/Jetting (Feet) 0 
Video Inspection (Feet) 530 

Description Total 
Sanitary Sewer Spills (SSO) 0 
SSO Gallons Spilled 0 

17



General Maintenance Division 

Maintenance By Department 
• Operations Department

o 2G Water Treatment Plant
o Big Creek Water Treatment Plant
o AWS
o STP

 Rehabilitated upper solids drying bed.
 Repaired failed drive hub shaft bearing on headworks conveyer. Fabricated jig to orient

bearing on shaft. Replaced drive belt.
 Repaired leaking recycled water valve.

o Reservoir 2 – STP Pond
o Water Storage Tank 4
o Water Storage Tank 5

• Maintenance Department
o Equipment

 Shop tool maintenance and cleaning.
 Serviced Mechanic shop air compressor.
 Service fire house generator.
 Monthly Inspect and run at operating temperatures…

• Rain for Rent, Sullair, Vactron, Cement mixer, Light Tower, STP generator,
Dunn Ct Generator, AWS Generator, Standby Generator, Highlands Generator.

Vehicles 

 50415: R&R heater core, high pressure port, and fan speed resistor.
 52229: R&R Tires.
 20420: R&R stator, flywheel, and regulator. Replaced spark plugs and cleaned

carburetor.
 62330: 90 Day Inspection.
 60524: 90 Day Inspection.
 60523: 90 Day Inspection.
 62333/12210: 90 Day Inspection.
 79783: 90 Day Inspection.
 70981: 90 Day Inspection, repaired auxiliary pump primer wiring.
 70087: 90 Day Inspection.
 41820: Serviced oil, filters, and rotated tires.
 52229: R&R Tires.
 62330: Diagnose CAN failures and reset.

18



o Buildings & Yard
 General yard cleanliness.
 Vegetation management.

Parks Division 

Maintenance and Repair 

• Mary Laveroni Community Park
• Landscape Maintenance.
• Remove and store sunshades over stage area.

• Ballfield & Dog Park

Contracted Work 

• Industrial Electric
• Waiting on additional parts to complete repair at AWS generator

Workplace Safety and Training 

o Routine Safety Meetings
• Daily Tailgate Meetings
• Weekly Safety Meetings
• Weekly Security Checks
• Weekly Vehicle Inspection

Three employees were able to 
attend California Water 
Environment Association 
Northern Safety Day in 
Woodland, CA. This is an 
annual event that features 
multiple training sessions and 
a vendor fair. 

19



Minutes 11 14 2023 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES 

DISTRICT GROVELAND, CALIFORNIA 
November 14, 2023 

  10:00 a.m. 

The Board of Directors of Groveland Community Services District met in regular session on the 
above mentioned date with Directors Nancy Mora President, Janice Kwiatkowski Vice President, 
and Robert Swan being present. Also present was Board Secretary Rachel Pearlman, 
Administrative Services Manager Jennifer Donabedian, Operations Manager Luis Melchor and 
General Manager Peter Kampa.  

Call to Order 
Director Kwiatkowski called the meeting to order at 10:03am. 

Directors Armstrong and Edwards Absent 

Approve Order of Agenda 
Motion 
It was moved by Director Kwiatkowski and seconded by Director Swan to approve the order of the 
Agenda. 
Ayes: Directors Mora, Kwiatkowski, and Swan  
Absent: Directors Armstrong and Edwards 

Public Comment 
None. 

Information Items 
Brief reports may be provided by District staff and/or Board members as information on matters of general interest. No action will be 
taken by the Board during Reports, however items discussed may be recommended for discussion and action on a future agenda. 
Public comments will be taken after each report is provided. 

Staff Reports 
Fire Department Report 
CERT Report 
Operations Manager’s Report 
Administrative Services Manager’s Report 
General Manager’s Report 

Proclamations  
Recognition of Debra Percoco for her 13 Years of Service to the Groveland Community Services 
District 

Recognition of Nathan Moffitt for his 3 Year of Service to the Groveland Community Services 
District 

Recognition of Darren Dalton for his 1 Year of Service to the to the Groveland Community 
Services District 

Recognition of Spencer Edwards for his 6 Years of Service to the Groveland Community 
Services District 

20



Minutes 11 14 2023 

 

 

Consent Calendar 
Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be acted upon by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these 
items unless a member of the Board, Staff or a member of the Public requests specific items be set aside for separate discussion. 
 
Approve Minutes from the October 10, 2023, Regular Meeting 
 
Accept October 2023 Payables 
 
Waive Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions Except by Title 
 
Ratification of the Filing and Recordation of a Notice of Completion with the County of Tuolumne 
for the Phase 1 WWTP Improvements (REBID) Project 
 Motion 
It was moved by Director Kwiatkowski and seconded by Director Swan to approve the Consent 
Calendar.  
Ayes: Directors Mora, Kwiatkowski, and Swan 
Absent: Director Armstrong and Edwards 
 
Old Business  
(Items tabled or carried forward from a previous meeting to be considered on this agenda. The Board of Directors intends to consider 
each of the following items and may take action at this meeting. Public comment is allowed on each individual agenda item listed 
below, and such comment will be considered in advance of each Board action) 

 
  None. 
 

Discussion and Action Items 
The Board of Directors intends to consider each of the following items and may take action at this meeting. Public comment is 
allowed on each individual agenda item listed below, and such comment will be considered in advance of each Board action. 

 
Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Revised License and Cost Reimbursement Agreement 
Between the District and Tuolumne County for Funding an Additional Fire Apparatus and 
Associated Staffing Co-Located with the Groveland Community Services District Fire Department 
for One (1) Year 
Motion 
It was moved by Director Swan and seconded by Director Kwiatkowski to adopt Resolution 36-
2023 approving an extension of the License and Cost Reimbursement Agreement between the 
District and Tuolumne County for funding an additional fire apparatus and associated staffing co-
located with the Groveland Community Services District Fire Department for one (1) year. 
Ayes: Directors Mora, Kwiatkowski, and Swan 
Absent: Director Armstrong and Edwards 

 
Adoption of a Resolution Accepting and Approving a Preliminary Design and Cost Estimate for 
Future Expansion of the Groveland Fire Station to Accommodate Additional Staffing and 
Equipment 
Motion 
It was moved by Director Swan and seconded by Director Mora to adopt Resolution 48-2023 
Accepting and Approving a Preliminary Design and Cost Estimate for Future Expansion of the 
Groveland Fire Station to Accommodate Additional Staffing and Equipment. 
Ayes: Directors Mora, Kwiatkowski, and Swan 
Absent: Director Armstrong and Edwards 

 
 
 

21



Minutes 11 14 2023 

Discussion and Input for Items or Issues to be Addressed by the Tuolumne County Natural 
Resources Committee 
Motion 
It was moved by Director Swan and seconded by Director Mora to support and recommend the 
strategic priorities as amended for the Tuolumne County Natural Resources Committee. 
Ayes: Directors Mora, Kwiatkowski, and Swan 
Absent: Director Armstrong and Edwards 

Adoption of a Resolution Accepting the Groveland Community Servies District Integrated Water 
and Wastewater Master Plan Prepared by Wood Rogers, Inc. 
Motion 
It was moved by Director Kwiatkowski and seconded by Director Swan to Adopt Resolution 49-
2023 Accepting the Groveland Community Servies District Integrated Water and Wastewater 
Master Plan Prepared by Wood Rogers, Inc. 
Ayes: Directors Mora, Kwiatkowski, and Swan 
Absent: Director Armstrong and Edwards 

Adoption of a Resolution Approving and Implementing the Revised District Communication Plan 
Motion 
It was moved by Director Mora and seconded by Director Kwiatkowski to adopt Resolution 50-
2023 approving and implementing the revised District Communication Plan. 
Ayes: Directors Mora, Kwiatkowski, and Swan 
Absent: Director Armstrong and Edwards 

Adoption of a Resolution Approving the Revised Consulting Agreement with Roni Lynn Rudy for 
Social Media Management and Other Public Outreach Services  
Motion 
It was moved by Director Swan and seconded by Director Kwiatkowski to adopt Resolution 51-
2023 approving the revised Consulting Agreement with Roni Lynn Rudy for Social Media 
Management and other Public Outreach Services.  
Ayes: Directors Mora, Kwiatkowski, and Swan 
Absent: Director Armstrong and Edwards 

Adoption of a Resolution Commending Debra Percoco for her Efforts and Accomplishments 
while Serving the Groveland Community Services District 
Motion 
It was moved by Director Mora and seconded by Director Kwiatkowski to adopt Resolution 52-
2023 commending Debra Percoco for her efforts and accomplishments while serving the 
Groveland Community Services District. 
Ayes: Directors Mora, Kwiatkowski, and Swan 
Absent: Director Armstrong and Edwards 

Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 12:55pm. 

22



Minutes 11 14 2023 

 APPROVED: 

Nancy Mora, Board President 

ATTEST: 

Rachel Pearlman, Board Secretary 

23



Minutes 11 28 2023 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES 

DISTRICT GROVELAND, CALIFORNIA 
  November 28, 2023 

  10:00 a.m. 

The Board of Directors of Groveland Community Services District met in special session on the 
above mentioned date with Directors Nancy Mora President, Janice Kwiatkowski Vice President, 
and Robert Swan being present. Also present was Board Secretary Rachel Pearlman, 
Administrative Services Manager Jennifer Donabedian, and Operations Manager Luis Melchor.   

Call to Order 
Director Mora called the meeting to order at 10:21am. 

Directors Armstrong and Edwards are absent. 

Discussion and Action Items 
The Board of Directors intends to consider each of the following items and may take action at this meeting. Public 
comment is allowed on each individual agenda item listed below, and such comment will be considered in advance of 
each Board action. 

Presentation of FY 2022-2023 4th Quarter Financial Statement 
Motion 
Information item only, no action taken.  

Presentation of FY 2023-2024 1st Quarter Financial Statement and Review of Investment Report 
Motion 
Information item only, no action taken. 

Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 11:00am. 

 APPROVED: 

Nancy Mora, Board President 

ATTEST: 

Rachel Pearlman, Board Secretary 

24



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

CHECK LISTING  

November 2023 
Fiscal Year 23/24 

Board Approval Date ___ 

25



Accounts Payable
Checks

User: mronning@gcsd.org

Printed: 12/4/2023 3:59:20 PM

Check Vendor Vendor Name Check D Void Commit Description Amount Reconcil Clear Da

23295 CAN03 CA-NV Sec AWWA Cert Prog 11/1/2023 False True $120.00 False

23296 CWEA CWEA 11/1/2023 False True $458.00 False

23297 Doh01 Doherty Tire of Sonora, Inc. 11/1/2023 False True $320.00 False

23298 Hun02 Hunt & Sons, Inc. 11/1/2023 False True $6,822.58 False

23299 met02 Metropolitan Life Insurance Company 11/1/2023 False True $442.85 False

23300 MOO01 Moore Bros. Scavenger Co., Inc. 11/1/2023 False True $1,025.37 False

23301 NBS01 NBS Government Finance Group 11/1/2023 False True $1,997.50 False

23302 Pri04 Principal Life Insurance Company 11/1/2023 False True $620.09 False

23303 Sie17 Sierra Instant Printing 11/1/2023 False True $146.81 False

23304 Sna01 Snap-on  Attn: Kyle 11/1/2023 False True $3,352.64 False

23305 TRO01 Trotter Welding & Steel Supply 11/1/2023 False True $273.73 False

23306 TWO1 Two Guys Pizza 11/1/2023 False True $59.55 False

23307 ups9 UPS 11/1/2023 False True $42.29 False

23308 AVE01 Avery Muffler 11/8/2023 False True $114.76 False

23309 BEN03 Benchmark Engineering 11/8/2023 False True $5,300.00 False

23310 Fas02 Fastenal 11/8/2023 False True $378.97 False

23311 GCS02 GCSD 11/8/2023 False True $8,866.32 False

23312 UB*03276 Geisler 11/8/2023 False True $52.24 False

23313 GEN02 General Supply Co 11/8/2023 False True $313.58 False

23314 UB*03269 Guraro, William 11/8/2023 False True $188.12 False

23315 UB*03275 Hanak, Kirk & Michele 11/8/2023 False True $32.56 False

23316 UB*03277 Hungerford, Gregg & Deborah 11/8/2023 False True $550.00 False

23317 ind04 Industrial Electrical Co. 11/8/2023 False True $2,320.00 False

23318 MOU03 Mountain Oasis Water Systems 11/8/2023 False True $139.00 False

23319 per04 Percoco, Ronald 11/8/2023 False True $1,739.00 False

23320 PGE01 PG&E 11/8/2023 False True $598.30 False

23321 Sma01 SmartCover Systems, Inc. 11/8/2023 False True $6,740.00 False

23322 TUO01 Tuo. Co. Public Power Agency 11/8/2023 False True $24,456.65 False

23323 Tuo14 Tuolumne County Recorder 11/8/2023 False True $243.50 False

23324 UB*03278 Walters, Christopher 11/8/2023 False True $91.28 False

23325 WHI03 White Brenner, LLP 11/8/2023 False True $1,020.00 False

23326 All06 AllStar Fire Equipment, Inc 11/15/2023 False True $585.00 False

23327 Alp03 Alpha Analytical Labs, Inc. 11/15/2023 False True

Cross Connection Renewal Luis M

CWEA Membership Renewal

Truck 781 repair
Fuel & Oil

Monthly LTD Insurance

Monthly Garbage Service

Update of Impact Fee Study for AB602

Monthly Vision & Life Insurance

Business Cards for S. Rogers, M. Atkins, M. Ronning

Shop vehicle scanner / work light

Truck 52331 vise mount fabrication

Employee Meals - Over 12 hours

Water pump return to Farmland Tractor

Truck 52231 vise mount fabrication

Survey Work for SFPUC HHRR Purchase

Janitorial Supplies

GCSD Water Bill

Refund Check 005377-000, 12017  Breckenridge Drive 13/91 
120240V SW for WWTP

Refund Check 013702-000, 20839  MCKINLEY  10/12 MW 10/11 
Refund Check 014404-001, 12806  Mueller Dr 5/157

Refund Check 009403-001, 12838  Mueller Dr 2/8 & 9

LS2 diagnosis & repair
Bottled Water

October 2023 Uniform Laundry Svs

Monthly Electric Charges

Smart Cover Annual Subscription

Monthly Public Power Purchase

Monthly subscription to County Records

Refund Check 016262-000, 11993  VALENTA WAY 8/256 
Monthly legal services

Annual self breathing apparatus flow testing

Water Lab Testing $3,655.00 False

Accounts Payable - Checks (12/4/2023) Page 1 of 3

26



Check Vendor Vendor Name Check D Void Commit Description Amount Reconcil Clear Da

23328 BUR01 Burton's Fire Inc 11/15/2023 False True $1,766.48 False

23329 Cle03 CleanSmith Solutions 11/15/2023 False True $5,500.00 False

23330 CWEA CWEA 11/15/2023 False True $525.00 False

23331 Du-A01 Du-All Safety, LLC 11/15/2023 False True $4,500.00 False

23332 FOO01 Foothill-Sierra Pest Control 11/15/2023 False True $300.00 False

23333 GCS01 GCSD Petty Cash 11/15/2023 False True $101.98 False

23334 GEN01 General Plumbing Supply 11/15/2023 False True $545.25 False

23335 gilb01 Gilbert Associates, Inc. 11/15/2023 False True $3,800.00 False

23336 GRA04 Grainger 11/15/2023 False True $304.05 False

23337 JSW02 J.S. West Propane Gas 11/15/2023 False True $495.97 False

23338 WAL04 Jay C. Wallace Plumbing 11/15/2023 False True $2,200.00 False

23339 MOT03 Mother Lode Answering Service 11/15/2023 False True $314.92 False

23340 Pea01 Pearlman, Rachel 11/15/2023 False True $95.93 False

23341 pml01 PML Hardware & Supply Inc. 11/15/2023 False True $763.20 False

23342 Pub01 Public Restroom Company 11/15/2023 False True $42,232.00 False

23343 SUE01 Ray Suess Insurance & Invst 11/15/2023 False True $3,718.92 False

23344 Ron01 Rudy, Roni Lynn 11/15/2023 False True $2,730.25 False

23345 SFPUC San Francisco Public Utilties Commission 11/15/2023 False True $12,262.00 False

23346 Sna01 Snap-on  Attn: Kyle 11/15/2023 False True $63.01 False

23347 son12 Sonora Ford 11/15/2023 False True $552.29 False

23348 Sprbrk Springbrook Holding Company LLC 11/15/2023 False True $1,407.80 False

23349 Tir02 TireHub, LLC 11/15/2023 False True $2,147.52 False

23350 UMP01 UMPQUA Bank Comm Card Ops 11/15/2023 False True $23,713.90 False

23351 AIR01 Airgas USA, LLC 11/29/2023 False True $63.10 False

23352 am01 AM Consulting Engineers, Inc. 11/29/2023 False True $33,306.60 False

23353 AWWA American Water Works Assoc 11/29/2023 False True $105.00 False

23354 BLU01 Anthem Blue Cross 11/29/2023 False True $27,187.62 False

23355 AT&T Mob AT&T Mobility (First Net) 11/29/2023 False True $1,372.27 False

23356 BEN03 Benchmark Engineering 11/29/2023 False True $15,700.00 False

23357 CAR06 Carbon Copy Inc. 11/29/2023 False True $510.66 False

23358 Cin01 Cintas 11/29/2023 False True $7.67 False

23359 DRU01 Drugtech Toxicology Services, LLC 11/29/2023 False True $245.00 False

23360 EDIS01 E.D.I.S. 11/29/2023 False True $5,275.79 False

23361 Fas02 Fastenal 11/29/2023 False True $925.02 False

23362 FP Mail FP Finance (Monthly pmt) 11/29/2023 False True $107.24 False

23363 GEN01 General Plumbing Supply 11/29/2023 False True $5,337.57 False

23364 GRA04 Grainger 11/29/2023 False True $423.44 False

23365 HAC01 Hach 11/29/2023 False True $2,197.70 False

23366 Hum02 Humana Insurance Company 11/29/2023 False True $2,977.81 False

23367 Hun02 Hunt & Sons, Inc. 11/29/2023 False True $5,890.48 False

23368 hyd02 Hydraflo, Inc. 11/29/2023 False True $742.50 False

23369 ITR01 Itron Electric Metering Co Inc 11/29/2023 False True $1,170.41 False

23370 Met03 Metro Presort 11/29/2023 False True

Truck 781 Oil less Primer
Disinfection/Janitorial Services Monthly

M Dickens - Cert Renewal/Membership

October Training/Completion of HMBP for GCSD sites 
Monthly Pest Control

Movies in the Park / Walmart

Water Stock Parts

Monthly CPA Services

Hour meters for water plants

Propane

Backflow testing and repair for non-compliant PO

Monthly Answering Service

Pub Relations Supplies

October Hardware Supplies

Progress Billing - Groveland Asset Rehabilitation & Beautificati 
Retired Members Medical

Social Media Management

Monthly Water Purchase

Shop Tools

Truck 50817 repair parts
October Civic Pay

Tires for truck 52229 & truck 50817

Credit Card Purchases 
Stainless steel tri-gas

October Projects 

AWWA Membership Dues

Monthly Group Health Ins.

Monthly AT&T

HH Railroad - Work through 10/27/2023

Monthly Copier Usage

Cleaning Svs

Consortium DOT Tests

Supplemental Health Insurance

Safety Supplies/Gloves

Monthly Postage Machine Rental

Water Stock Parts

Bearing for headworks conveyor

Chemicals for water treatment

Dental Insurance-Monthly

Fuel & Oil

Hydrant Repair Kits

Quarterly Hardware Maint-Handhelds

Monthly UB Statement Processing $2,091.52 False

Accounts Payable - Checks (12/4/2023) Page 2 of 3

27



Check Vendor Vendor Name Check D Void Commit Description Amount Reconcil Clear Da

23371 met02 Metropolitan Life Insurance Company 11/29/2023 False True $442.85 False

23372 MOO01 Moore Bros. Scavenger Co., Inc. 11/29/2023 False True $193.58 False

23373 Moy02 Moyle Excavation Inc. 11/29/2023 False True $330,631.35 False

23374 Moy02 Moyle Excavation Inc. 11/29/2023 False True $76,005.36 False

23375 NBS01 NBS Government Finance Group 11/29/2023 False True $11,400.00 False

23376 Oreil O'Reilly Auto Parts 11/29/2023 False True $49.09 False

23377 pac04 Pacific Crane Inspections 11/29/2023 False True $2,300.00 False

23378 Pin07 Pine Mountain Auto 11/29/2023 False True $1,252.27 False

23379 Rus01 Rush Advertising Specialties 11/29/2023 False True $3,852.75 False

23380 Sna01 Snap-on  Attn: Kyle 11/29/2023 False True $381.55 False

23381 Sprbrk Springbrook Holding Company LLC 11/29/2023 False True $36.90 False

23382 STA02 State Wtr. Res. Control 11/29/2023 False True $300.00 False

23383 ups9 UPS 11/29/2023 False True $34.02 False

23384 WHI03 White Brenner, LLP 11/29/2023 False True $3,700.00 False

23385 Deluxe Deluxe Business Checks & Sol 11/30/2023 False True $752.65 False

115920 OE3 Operating Engineers Local #3 11/3/2023 False True $395.98 False

115921 OE3 Operating Engineers Local #3 11/17/2023 False True $395.98 False

902684 CAL09 CalPers 457 Plan Administrator 11/3/2023 False True $1,153.85 True

902685 EDD01 EDD - Electronic 11/3/2023 False True $3,782.13 True

902686 FedEFTPS Federal EFTPS 11/3/2023 False True $19,914.38 True

902687 Orion Orion Portfolio Solutions 11/3/2023 False True $2,675.00 True

902688 PER01 Pers - Electronic 11/3/2023 False True $12,458.57 True

902689 CAL09 CalPers 457 Plan Administrator 11/24/2023 False True $1,153.85 True

902690 EDD01 EDD - Electronic 11/24/2023 False True $4,208.02 True

902691 FedEFTPS Federal EFTPS 11/24/2023 False True $20,726.84 True

902692 Orion Orion Portfolio Solutions 11/24/2023 False True $2,675.00 True

902693 PER01 Pers - Electronic 11/24/2023 False True

Monthly LTD Insurance

Fire Dept 90 Gallon Tote

Final Payment Sewer Collection System
Final Payment WWTP Phase 1
Development Impact Fee Study

Truck 50415 parts
Annual crane inspections

October Auto Parts/Supplies

Employee Uniforms

Shop tools

October Software Billing

Greg Dunn W3 Renewal

Shipping fees for return of damaged water meter. 
October Legal Services

A/P Check Stock & Deposit Slips

PR Batch 00001.11.2023 Oper Engin Union Dues 
PR Batch 00002.11.2023 Oper Engin Union Dues 
PR Batch 00001.11.2023 CalPers Def Comp

PR Batch 00001.11.2023 State Income Tax

PR Batch 00001.11.2023 FICA Employer Portion

PR Batch 00001.11.2023 Orion 457

PR Batch 00001.11.2023 PEPRA Employee

PR Batch 00002.11.2023 CalPers Def Comp

PR Batch 00002.11.2023 State Income Tax

PR Batch 00002.11.2023 Medicare Employer Portion 
PR Batch 00002.11.2023 Orion 457

PR Batch 00002.11.2023 PERS Employer Exp.-Classic $12,458.57 True

Accounts Payable - Checks (12/4/2023) Page 3 of 3

Payroll Direct Deposit $103,770.82

Total Accounts Payables   $905,844.92

28



BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL 

TO: GCSD Board of Directors 

FROM: Peter Kampa, General Manager 

DATE: December 12, 2023  

SUBJECT: Agenda Item 4D: Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the 
General Manager to File the Emergency Generator Replacement 
Project (REBID) Notice of Completion with The County of Tuolumne 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends the following action: 
I move to adopt Resolution 53-2023 authorizing the General Manager to file the 
Emergency Generator Replacement Project Notice of Completion with the County of 
Tuolumne. 

BACKGROUND: 
The Emergency Generator Replacement Project (REBID) work consisted of furnishing and 
installing emergency generators and automatic transfer switches with the Groveland 
Community Services District’s service area at the following locations: 

1. Highlands Booster Pump Station
2. Groveland CSD Office/Wastewater Treatment Plant
3. Lift Station No. 7
4. Lift Station No. 9
5. Lift Station No. 8
6. Lift Station No. 13
7. Lift Station No. 2
8. Lift Station No. 1
9. Big Creek Water Treatment Facility
10. Second Garrotte Water Treatment Facility

The scope of work for the Project also included various site improvements such as the 
addition of reinforced concrete pads, modular walls, and drainage facilities. The 
installation of the Project’s scope of work has been completed per the plans and technical 
specifications prepared for the project, with modifications made through change orders. 
AM Consulting Engineers, Inc. attended a final walkthrough of the project site to verify 
that the project had been adequately completed.  

29



Based on the findings during the final walkthrough, the Emergency Generator Replacement 
Project (REBID) can be accepted and deemed complete.     

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
There is no Fiscal Impact associated with filing the Notice of Completion. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Notice of Completion
2. Resolution 53-2023

30



EJCDC C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment
© 2010 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC.  All rights reserved.

Page 1 of 4

Contractor's Application for Payment No.
Application Application Date:

Period:

To From (Contractor): Via (Engineer):

(Owner):

Project: Contract:

Owner's Contract No.: Contractor's Project No.: Engineer's Project No.:

1.  ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE...........................................................................$

2.  Net change by Change Orders......................................................................................$

3.  Current Contract Price (Line 1 ± 2)................................................................................................$

4. TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED TO DATE

 (Column F on Progress Estimate + Line 2)......................................... $

5. RETAINAGE:

a. 5% X $660,880.33 Work Completed..............................................$

b. X Stored Material..............................................$

c. Total Retainage (Line 5a + Line 5b).........................................................................................................................................$

6.  AMOUNT ELIGIBLE TO DATE (Line 4 - Line 5c)....................................................................................................................$

7.  LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENTS (Line 6 from prior Application).........................................................................................................$

8.  AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION....................................................................................................................................$

9. BALANCE TO FINISH, PLUS RETAINAGE

 (Column G on Progress Estimate + Line 5.c above).....................................................................................................$

Contractor's Certification

 Payment of: $

 is recommended by:

 Payment of: $

 is approved by:

By: Date:  Approved by:

Application For Payment

Funding Agency (if applicable)

33,044.02$    

(Line 8 or other - attach explanation of the other amount)

$627,836.31

$33,044.02

$10,250.00

$33,044.02

(Date)

(Date)

$660,880.33

(Engineer)

$25,150.00

(Owner)

Number

1

33,044.02$    

(Line 8 or other - attach explanation of the other amount)

(Date)

Change Order Summary

$25,150.00

4 $19,432.00

2

3

$9,019.45

Deductions

Approved Change Orders

$3,376.59

TOTALS

5
6

5200

NET CHANGE BY

CHANGE ORDERS
$11,604.33

$36,754.33

Days Generator Service, Inc. 

Additions

$2,686.29

$659,526.00

$11,604.33

$671,130.33

$33,044.02

$2,240.00

$660,880.33

Emergency Generator Replacement Project

The undersigned Contractor certifies that to the best of its knowledge: (1) all previous progress payments 
received from Owner on account of Work done under the Contract have been applied on account to discharge 
Contractor's legitimate obligations incurred in connection with Work covered by prior Applications for 
Payment; (2) title of all Work, materials and equipment incorporated in said Work or otherwise listed in or 
covered by this Application for Payment will pass to Owner at time of payment free and clear of all Liens, 
security interests and encumbrances (except such as are covered by a Bond acceptable to Owner indemnifying 
Owner against any such Liens, security interest or encumbrances); and (3) all Work covered by this Application 
for Payment is in accordance with the Contract Documents and is not defective.

11-16-2022

11/16/2023

7

11/16/23
AM Consulting Engineers

31



EJCDC C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment
© 2010 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC.  All rights reserved.

Page 3 of 4

Progress Estimate - Unit Price Work             Contractor's Application
For (Contract): Application Number:

Application Period: Application Date:

1 1 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 1 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 100.0%
2
2a 1 $41,779.00 $41,779.00 1 $41,779.00 $41,779.00 100.0%
2b 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 100.0%
3 1 $94,243.00 $94,243.00 1 $94,243.00 $94,243.00 100.0%
4 1 $32,544.00 $32,544.00 1 $32,544.00 $32,544.00 100.0%
5 1 $23,748.00 $23,748.00 1 $23,748.00 $23,748.00 100.0%
6 1 $23,748.00 $23,748.00 1 $23,748.00 $23,748.00 100.0%
7
7a 1 $65,594.00 $65,594.00 1 $65,594.00 $65,594.00 100.0%
7b 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 100.0%
8 1 $23,689.00 $23,689.00 1 $23,689.00 $23,689.00 100.0%
9 1 $15,662.00 $15,662.00 1 $15,662.00 $15,662.00 100.0%

10
10a 1 $39,810.00 $39,810.00 1 $39,810.00 $39,810.00 100.0%
10b 1 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 1 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 100.0%
10c 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 100.0%
10d 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 100.0%
11
11a 1 $57,659.00 $57,659.00 1 $57,659.00 $57,659.00 100.0%
11b 1 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 1 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 100.0%
11c 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 100.0%
11d 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 100.0%
12 5 $450.00 $2,250.00 4 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 80.0% $450.00

1
70 $140.00

$9,800.00 $9,800.00

2 1 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 1 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 100.0%
3

1 $71,000.00
$71,000.00 1 $71,000.00 $71,000.00 100.0%

1 $2,686.29 $2,686.29 1 $2,686.29 $2,686.29 100.0%

1 $9,019.45 $9,019.45 1 $9,019.45 $9,019.45 100.0%

1 $3,376.59 $3,376.59 1 $3,376.59 $3,376.59 100.0%

1 $19,432.00 $19,432.00 1 $19,432.00 $19,432.00 100.0%

1 ($25,150.00) -$25,150.00 1 -$25,150.00 -$25,150.00 100.0%

1 $2,240.00 $2,240.00 1 $2,240.00 $2,240.00 100.0%

2.3/16/2023 Additions-big Creek & Second Garrotte
3. 4/10/2023 Additions-Square D Subpannel & Breaker
4. 5/25/2023 Additions-ATS at CSD Office

6. 6/12/23 Additions-Second Garrotte Site

Replacement of Conductors for Second Garrotte Generator Connection to 
ATS
District office Generator Fuel Distribution Improvements
Lift Station No.13 Modular Retaining Wall and Drainage Improvements 

Change Orders

1. 3/1/2023 Additions- Lift Station 8

5. 5/31/2023 Deduction for Fuel Distrbution Improvements

Lift Station 1 Improvements
Big Creek Water Treatment Plant Improvements

Second Garrotte Water Treatment Plant Improvements 

Excavation Through Rock (Crew of 3)
Bid Additive Items

Demo & Install 
Radiator Duckwork and screen 
Exhaust work
Fuel System 

Demo & Install 
Radiator Duckwork and screen 
Exhaust work
Fuel System 

Lift Station 7 Improvements 
Lift Station 9 Improvements
Lift Station 8 Improvements

Lift Station 13 Improvements

Lift Station 2 Improvements
ATS 
Demo & Install 

Bid Item No. Description

Mobilization, Demobilization, Bonds and Insurance
Highlands, Booster pump Station imporvements

Groveland CSD Office Improvements

Demo & Install 
ATS 

Estimated 
Quantity 
Installed

Value of Work 
Installed to Date

Materials Presently 
Stored (not in C)

Total Completed and 
Stored to Date (D + 

E)

%  
(F / B)  

Balance to Finish  
(B - F)

5200

A B C D E F

Item
Bid Item 
Quantity

Unit Price Bid Item  
Value ($)

32



EJCDC C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment
© 2010 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC.  All rights reserved.

Page 3 of 4

$659,526.00 $660,880.33 $649,276.00 98.4% $10,250.00Totals

33



RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 

AND FOR THE BENEFIT OF, 

Groveland Community Services District 

No Fee-Gov/t. Code Sections 

6103 and 27383 

WHEN RECORDED, MAIL TO: 

Groveland Community Services District 

18966 Ferretti Rd,  

Groveland, CA 95321 

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER’S USE

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

Notice pursuant to Civil Code Section 3093, must be filed within 10 days after completion. 

Notice is hereby given that: 

1. The undersigned is owner or corporate officer of the owner of the interest or estate stated below in the property hereinafter described:

2. The full name of the owner is: Groveland Community Services District

3. The full address of the owner is: 18966 Ferretti Rd, Groveland, CA 95321

4. The nature of the interest or estate of the owner is: In Fee

5. A work of improvement on the property hereinafter described was completed on: November 16, 2023.  The work done was: Emergency 
Generator Replacement (REBID), Generator/Automatic Transfer Switch replacement along with various site improvements.

6. The name of the contractor, if any, for such work of improvement was: Day’s Generator Service, Inc, P.O. Box 1868, Brentwood, CA 94513.

7. The properties on which said work of improvements were completed are in the County of Tuolumne, State of California, and are described as 
follows: The Groveland Community Services District service area (Highlands Pump Station, District Office, Lift Station 7, Lift Station 9, 
Lift Station 8, Lift Station 13, Lift Station 2, Lift Station 1, Big Creek Treatment Facility, and Second Garrotte Treatment Facility).

8. The street addresses of said properties are: 18966 Ferretti Rd, Groveland, CA 95321,

9. Resolution No. 53-2023 Attached Hereto and Made a Part Hereof.

Dated: _
Peter Kampa 
District Manager 

VERIFICATION 

I, the undersigned, say: I am the Engineer for the Groveland Community Services District, the declarant of the foregoing notice of completion; 

I have read said notice of completion and know the contents thereof; the same is true of my own knowledge.  I declare under penalty of perjury that 
the foregoing is true and correct. 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
(PERSONAL SIGNATURE OF THE INDIVIDUAL WHO IS SWEARING THAT THE CONTENTS OF THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION ARE TRUE.) 

Executed on ______November 16, 2023  , 2023, at     ______        ___Fresno, CA        . 
(DATE) (LOCATION)  

34



RESOLUTION 53-2023 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AUTHORIZING 

THE GENERAL MANAGER TO FILE THE EMERGENCY GENERATOR 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT (REBID) NOTICE OF COMPLETION WITH 

THE COUNTY OF TUOLUMNE 

WHEREAS, the Groveland Community Services District (herein referred to as District) is a 
local government agency formed and operating in accordance with Section §61000 et seq. of 
the California Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, the installation of the Project’s scope of work has been completed per the plans 
and technical specifications prepared for the project, with modifications made through change 
orders; and  
 
WHEREAS, AM Consulting Engineers, Inc. attended a final walkthrough of the project site 
to verify that the project had been adequately completed; and  
 
WHEREAS, there are no outstanding matters with the contractor; and 
 
WHEREAS, based on the findings during the final walkthrough the Emergency Generator 
Replacement Project (REBID) can be accepted and deemed complete.     

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES hereby approve Resolution 
53-2023 authorizing the General Manager to file the Emergency Generator Replacement Project 
Notice of Completion with the County of Tuolumne. 
 

WHEREFORE, this Resolution is passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the 
Groveland Community Services District on December 12, 2023, by the following vote: 

AYES:  
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

35



 
APPROVE: 
 

 

 
 Nancy Mora, Board President  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 

 
  Rachel Pearlman, Board secretarySecretary 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 

I, Rachel Pearlman, the duly appointed and acting Secretary of the Board of Directors of 
the Groveland Community Services District, do hereby declare that the foregoing 
Resolution was duly passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of 
the Groveland Community Services District, duly called and held on December 12, 2023. 
DATED:    

 

Page 2 Resolution 53-2023 

36



 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL 
 
TO:  GCSD Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Peter Kampa, General Manager  
 
DATE: December 12, 2023  
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item 4E: Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the 

General Manager to File the Pavement Rehabilitation (Phase 2) 
Project Notice of Completion with the County of Tuolumne   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends the following action: 
I move to adopt Resolution 54-2023 authorizing the General Manager to file the 
Pavement Rehabilitation (Phase 2) project Notice of Completion with the County of 
Tuolumne. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Pavement Rehabilitation (Phase 2) work consisted of replacing existing asphalt 
pavement and installing new asphalt pavement within the Groveland Community Services 
District’s service area at the following locations: 
  
1. District Office 
2. Fire Station  
3. Mary Laveroni Park 
4. Lift Station 1  
5. Lift Station 4   
6. Lift Station 5   
7. Lift Station 6   
8. Lift Station 7   
9. Lift Station 8   
10. Lift Station 9   
11. Lift Station 10   
12. Lift Station 11 
13. Lift Station 12 
14. Lift Station 14  
 
The installation of the Project’s scope of work has been completed per the plans and 
technical specifications prepared for the project, with modifications made through change 

37



 

orders. AM Consulting Engineers, Inc. attended a final walkthrough of the project site to 
verify that the project had been adequately completed.  
 
Based on the findings during the final walkthrough, the Pavement Rehabilitation (Phase 2) 
can be accepted and deemed complete.      
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
There is no Fiscal Impact associated with filing the Notice of Completion. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Notice of Completion  
2. Resolution 54-2023 

 

38



RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 

AND FOR THE BENEFIT OF, 

Groveland Community Services District 

No Fee-Gov/t. Code Sections 

6103 and 27383 

WHEN RECORDED, MAIL TO: 

Groveland Community Services District 

18966 Ferretti Rd,  

Groveland, CA 95321 

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER’S USE

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

Notice pursuant to Civil Code Section 3093, must be filed within 10 days after completion. 

Notice is hereby given that: 

1. The undersigned is owner or corporate officer of the owner of the interest or estate stated below in the property hereinafter described:

2. The full name of the owner is: Groveland Community Services District

3. The full address of the owner is: 18966 Ferretti Rd, Groveland, CA 95321

4. The nature of the interest or estate of the owner is: In Fee

5. A work of improvement on the property hereinafter described was completed on: November 17, 2023.  The work done was: Pavement
Rehabilitation (Phase 2), which included the replacement of existing and installation of new asphalt pavement throughout the
Groveland Community Services District service area.

6. The name of the contractor, if any, for such work of improvement was: Moyle Excavation, Inc, P.O. Box 498, Jamestown, CA 95327.

7. The properties on which said work of improvements were completed are in the County of Tuolumne, State of California, and are described as
follows: The Groveland Community Services District service area.

8. The street addresses of said properties are: 18966 Ferretti Rd, Groveland, CA 95321.

9. Resolution No. 2023-___, Attached Hereto and Made a Part Hereof.

Dated: _
Peter Kampa 
District Manager 

VERIFICATION 

I, the undersigned, say: I am the Engineer for the Groveland Community Services District, the declarant of the foregoing notice of completion; 

I have read said notice of completion and know the contents thereof; the same is true of my own knowledge.  I declare under penalty of perjury that 
the foregoing is true and correct. 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
(PERSONAL SIGNATURE OF THE INDIVIDUAL WHO IS SWEARING THAT THE CONTENTS OF THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION ARE TRUE.) 

Executed on ______November 17  , 2023, at     ______        ___Fresno, CA . 
(DATE) (LOCATION)  

39



RESOLUTION 54-2023 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AUTHORIZING 

THE GENERAL MANAGER TO FILE THE PAVEMENT 
REHABILITATION (PHASE 2) PROJECT NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

WITH THE COUNTY OF TUOLUMNE   

WHEREAS, the Groveland Community Services District (herein referred to as District) is a 
local government agency formed and operating in accordance with Section §61000 et seq. of 
the California Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, the installation of the Project’s scope of work has been completed per the plans 
and technical specifications prepared for the project, with modifications made through change 
orders; and  
 
WHEREAS, AM Consulting Engineers, Inc. attended a final walkthrough of the project site 
to verify that the project had been adequately completed; and  
 
WHEREAS, there are no outstanding matters with the contractor; and 
 
WHEREAS, based on the findings during the final walkthrough the Pavement Replacement (Phase 2) 
Project can be accepted and deemed complete.     

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES hereby approve Resolution 
54-2023 authorizing the General Manager to file the Pavement Rehabilitation (Phase 2) Project 
Notice of Completion with the County of Tuolumne. 
 

WHEREFORE, this Resolution is passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the 
Groveland Community Services District on December 12, 2023, by the following vote: 

AYES:  
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

40



 
APPROVE: 
 

 

 
 Nancy Mora, Board President  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 

 
  Rachel Pearlman, Board secretary 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 

I, Rachel Pearlman, the duly appointed and acting Secretary of the Board of Directors of 
the Groveland Community Services District, do hereby declare that the foregoing 
Resolution was duly passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of 
the Groveland Community Services District, duly called and held on December 12, 2023. 
DATED:    

 

Page 2 Resolution 54-2023 

41



 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL 
 
TO:  GCSD Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Peter Kampa, General Manager  
 
DATE: December 12, 2023  
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item 6A: Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the 

General Manager to Sign a Subrecipient Agreement Between the 
County of Tuolumne and the District for the GCSD Downtown 
Groveland-Big Oak Flat Water System Improvements Project   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends the following action: 
I move to adopt Resolution 55-2023 Authorizing the General Manager to Sign a 
Subrecipient Agreement between the County of Tuolumne and the District for the 
GCSD Downtown Groveland-Big Oak Flat Water System Improvements Project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Groveland Community Services District (GCSD) Water System Improvement 
Project proposes to replace water mains and appurtenances in Groveland and Big-Oak 
Flat. Most of the water distribution mains that supply water to the communities of 
Groveland and Big Oak Flat are 4" in diameter or smaller and are almost 70 years old. 
Frequent main breaks occur in these areas, causing large amounts of water to be lost, 
property damage, and back siphon conditions to occur. Backflow and back siphonage of 
contaminated water caused by water main breaks are a significant risk to the health and 
safety of the community. Constant water loss is also occurring through small unidentified 
leaks in the distribution system due to its deteriorated condition. The Groveland and Big 
Oak Flat systems are currently in a condition where an increase in catastrophic water 
main failure is occurring, resulting in more frequent, longer water outages. 
 
The work consists of installing 8,377 LF of 8-inch mains to replace the existing water 
system. System appurtenances include thirty (30) fire hydrants and forty (40) residential 
water services (public portion only). All of the proposed water mains and appurtenances 
are located within the public right of way. The total estimated cost of the improvements is 
$3,267,500.00 and 100% of this cost is requested in this CDBG application. The project 
will benefit a total of 915 people across two block groups, of which 685 are low/moderate 
income (75%) according to census data. GCSD will implement the project under an 
executed subrecipient agreement with Tuolumne County. 
 
The proposed project has been designed and construction documents are ready. The 
project will be publicly bid within 90 days of State contract execution. GCSD will 
perform the construction management and inspections. Labor Standards monitoring will 

42



 

be provided by Cox Consulting under the existing County professional services 
agreement. Construction is expected to begin within 6 months of the grant award and is 
estimated to take three months to complete. The final funding disbursement request 
will be submitted one month after the completion of construction.  
 
The application for the CDBG grant funding is due by December 29, 2023. This agreement 
has been prepared by the County; the District’s Legal Counsel has reviewed this agreement 
and has provided an opinion letter which is attached. The Board of Supervisors held a 
Public Hearing on December 5, 2023, and approved Resolution 110-23 for the submittal 
of the 2023 CDBG Grant Application. At this time, staff recommends that the Board  
authorize the General Manager to enter into this Subrecipient Agreement for the 
Downtown Groveland-Big Oak Flat Water System Improvements Project.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
The chart below is a summary of the budget for this Agreement:  
  

 

 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Subrecipient Agreement 
2. Legal Opinion Letter  
3. Resolution 55-2023 

 

 

Administration/Testin

43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



whitebrennerllp.com  
 

1414 K Street, 3rd Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
T 916.468.0950  |  F 916.468.0951 

 
 
 

 
 

{CW134448.7}  

 

November 30, 2023 

County of Tuolumne 

Attn: Maureen Frank, Capital Projects Director 

2 S. Green St., 4th Floor 

Sonora, CA 95370 

Email: mfrank@co.tuolumne.ca.us 

 

Re.:  State of California Community Development Block Grant Program 

Groveland Community Services District 

GCSD Downtown-Big Oak Flat Water System Improvement Project 

 

Dear Ms. Frank: 

I serve as General Counsel to the Groveland Community Services District (“District”).  I 

understand that the District anticipates an award of Community Development Block Grant 

(“CDBG”) funds for the following infrastructure project: 

The GCSD Downtown Groveland-Big Oak Flat Water System Improvement Project (the 

“Project”) 

The Project proposes to replace existing water mains and appurtenances in the 

communities of Groveland and Big-Oak Flat.  The work consists of installing 8,377 linear feet 

of 8-inch water mains and related appurtenances to replace the existing water distribution 

system, which is almost seventy (70) years old and in need of replacement.  The District has 

determined that the Project is necessary to maintain safe and reliable water delivery. 

I have examined the laws pertaining to the District and the records of the District.  To the 

best of my knowledge, based on the information provided by the District and upon 

reasonable investigation, it is my opinion that: 

1. The District, a community services district duly organized and validly existing under 

the laws of the State of California pursuant to the Community Services District Law 

(Government Code, § 61000 et seq.), has the requisite legal authority to undertake, 

carry out and consummate all transactions related to the Project. 

 

2. The District has enforceable property rights in the areas affected by the Project to 

undertake all work related to the Project.  All property interests in fee, grants of 

easement, and such other licenses necessary to perform, operate and maintain the 

Project remain in full force and effect. 

Douglas L. White                                                                 
T: 916.468.0947                                                                 
Doug@whitebrennerllp.com 

 

66

mailto:mfrank@co.tuolumne.ca.us


Maureen Frank, Capital Projects Director 
November 30, 2023 

Page 2 of 2 

{CW134448.7}  

3. All agreements, transactions, and CDBG program requirements contemplated for the 

Project will not conflict with or constitute a breach of (a) the Community Services 

District Law, (b) the statutes of the State of California, (c) the ordinances or policies 

of the District, (d) any bond, contract, or other debt to which the District is a party, 

or (e) any other applicable law, administrative regulation, or court order. 

 

4. Regarding any and all documents related to the Project, no facts have come to my 

attention which lead me to believe that the District’s authorized representatives 

have made any untrue or misleading statement of material fact or omitted any 

material fact. 

 

5. There is no action, suit, proceeding, or investigation before any judicial or 

governmental authority affecting the District’s assets, properties, or operations 

which would materially and adversely affect the financial condition of the District or 

the Project. 

 
Based on the foregoing, it is my opinion that the District is in substantial compliance with 

all state and local requirements necessary to commence the Project.    

Kind regards,  

 

White Brenner LLP 

 

 

 

Douglas L. White 

General Counsel, Groveland Community Services District 

 

Cc: Pete Kampa, District General Manager; pkampa@gcsd.org    

Jennifer Donabedian, District Administrative Services Manager; 

jdonabedian@gcsd.org 

Adam Ahlswede, District Property, Easements, and Assets Manager; 

aahlswede@gcsd.org  

Brandon Cauble, District Project Engineer; brandon.cauble@am-ce.com 

 

 

 

67

mailto:pkampa@gcsd.org
mailto:jdonabedian@gcsd.org
mailto:aahlswede@gcsd.org
mailto:brandon.cauble@am-ce.com


RESOLUTION 55-2023 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AUTHORIZING 

THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN A SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF TUOLUMNE AND THE DISTRICT FOR 

THE GCSD DOWNTOWN GROVELAND-BIG OAK FLAT WATER 
SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT  

WHEREAS, the Groveland Community Services District (herein referred to as District) is a 
local government agency formed and operating in accordance with Section §61000 et seq. of 
the California Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, Tuolumne County has applied for funds from the State of California, 
Department of Housing and Community Development, State Community Development Block 
Grant Program ("the Department") originating from the United States Government under Title 
I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended (the "Act"), Public 
Law 93-383; and anticipates an award of the same; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Act provides that the Recipient may grant CDBG Funds to The Groveland 
Community Services District for certain purposes allowed under the Act; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District is a governmental agency as a special district which operates a 
service in an area that meets the required low to moderate income limits and is eligible for a 
grant of CDBG Funds; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District is a "Subrecipient" as defined in the Code of Federal Regulations at 
2CFR Part 200.331; and  
 
WHEREAS, the County wishes to engage the “Subrecipient” to assist the District in utilizing 
such funds for the GCSD Downtown Groveland-Big Oak Flat Water System Improvement 
Project, upon award. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES hereby approve Resolution 
55-2023 authorizing the General Manager to sign a Subrecipient Agreement between the County 
of Tuolumne and the District for the GCSD Downtown Groveland-Big Oak Flat Water System 
Improvements Project. 
 

WHEREFORE, this Resolution is passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the 
Groveland Community Services District on December 12, 2023, by the following vote: 

AYES:  
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT 
 
 68



 
 
 
 
APPROVE: 
 

 

 
 Nancy Mora, Board President  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 

 
  Rachel Pearlman, Board Secretary 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 

I, Rachel Pearlman, the duly appointed and acting Secretary of the Board of Directors of 
the Groveland Community Services District, do hereby declare that the foregoing 
Resolution was duly passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of 
the Groveland Community Services District, duly called and held on December 12, 2023. 
DATED:    

 

Page 2 Resolution 55-2023 

69



 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL 
 
TO:  GCSD Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Peter Kampa, General Manager  
 
DATE: December 12, 2023  
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item 6B: Adoption of a Resolution Approving the Potable 

Water Storage and Distribution System Improvements Project and 
Authorizing Public Bidding  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
I move to adopt Resolution 56-2023 approving the Potable Water Storage and Distribution 
System Improvements Project and Authorizing Public Bidding for the Potable Water Storage 
and Distribution System Improvements Project (Project). 

 
BACKGROUND:  
The Groveland Community Service District (Groveland CSD, GCSD) provides potable water 
services to the surrounding community. The Groveland CSD’s primary water source is the Hetch 
Hetchy Reservoir located in Yosemite National Park on the Tuolumne River. Hetch Hetchy is also 
the principal water source for the City and County of San Francisco and a number of other utilities 
in the San Francisco Bay Area served by the City and County of San Francisco. Water flows from 
Hetch Hetchy through the Mountain Tunnel, a tunnel just south of Groveland into Priest Regulating 
Reservoir. GCSD obtains water from the Mountain Tunnel prior to and upstream of Priest 
Regulating Reservoir at two locations. These locations are the Big Creek Shaft (the most upstream) 
and the Second Garrotte Shaft.  

In addition to the primary water source, GCSD also has a secondary or Alternative Water Supply 
(AWS) source. The AWS water source is Pine Mountain Lake. The District installed in 2003 a 
trailer mounted water treatment plant in PML to be able to provide water to the Community during 
outages of the Mountain Tunnel. The AWS Water Treatment Plant (WTP) was intended to be a 
portable WTP. 

During severe drought conditions, the Second Garrote WTP and the AWS WTP would not have 
enough capacity to supply water to the entire service area during maximum day demand. GCSD is 
proposing a new 140,000-gal water storage tank next to the existing Tank 5 and a connection of 
Tank 5 to Big Oak Flat service areas via a new distribution pipeline 5,500 linear foot long 8-inch 
water main along Harper/Black Road.  

By the addition of this new storage tank and distribution pipeline, Tank 5 service area and Big Oak 
Flat will be isolated from the remaining service area and supplied mainly from Tank 5. This 
improvement will reduce the demand that has to be supplied from Second Garrote and the AWS 
system.  

 

 

 

70



 

The adoption of this resolution will allow staff to publicly bid the Potable Water Storage and 
Distribution System Improvements Project and will provide sufficient redundancy during severe 
drought conditions to ensure the Groveland CSD can continuously provide potable water to the 
service area.    

  

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Construction costs for the Potable Water Storage and Distribution System Improvements Project 
are estimated to cost approximately $2,450,000. The costs for the proposed Project will be covered 
in full by an Urban Multibenefit Drought Relief Grant from the State of California Department of 
Water Resources.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Resolution 56-2023 

2. Engineer’s Estimate  

71



Item No. Item Description Estimated Quantity Units Unit Price Item Total

1 Mobilization, Demobilization, Bonds and Insurance 1 LS $200,000 $200,000
2 Traffic Control 1 LS $30,000 $30,000
3 Demolition 1 LS $50,000 $50,000
4 Clearing and Grubbing - Water Tank 1 LS $10,000 $10,000
5 Bolted Steel Potable Water Storage Tank 1 LS $420,000 $420,000
6 10” Overflow Piping – Water Tank 1 LS $25,000 $25,000
7 8” Inlet/Outlet Piping – Water Tank 1 LS $20,000 $20,000
8 8” Circulating Piping – Water Tank 1 LS $20,000 $20,000
9 8” Inlet/Outlet Piping In Existing Water Tank 1 LS $20,000 $20,000

10 8” Drain Piping In Existing Water Tank 1 LS $20,000 $20,000
11 Site Grading, Paving, Surfacing – Water Tank 1 LS $115,000 $115,000
12 Perimeter Wall, Gate And Driveway – Water Tank 1 LS $10,000 $10,000
13 Electrical And Instrumentation – Water Tank 1 LS $150,000 $150,000
14 Furnish And Install 8” Inch Distribution Line 1 LS $775,000 $775,000
15 Furnish And Install Fire Hydrants 1 LS $50,000 $50,000
16 Furnish And Install Air Release Valves 1 LS $25,000 $25,000
17 Furnish And Install Pressure Reducing Station 1 LS $75,000 $75,000
18 Excavation Through Rock 1 LS $100,000 $100,000

$1,940,000

1 Exterior Tank Nitrification Improvements. Existing Tank 1 LS $50,000 $50,000
2 Exterior Tank Nitrification Improvements. Proposed Tank 1 LS $50,000 $50,000

$100,000
$2,040,000
$306,000
$204,000

$2,450,000Total Construction Costs

Groveland CSD 
Potable Water Storage and Distribution System Improvements 

Engineers Estimate

Base Bid Total

Contingency (15%)
Construction Administration (10%)

Base Bid Items

Bid Additive Items

Bid Additive Total
Base Bid Plus All Additives Total

72



RESOLUTION 56-2023 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT APPROVING THE 

POTABLE WATER STORAGE AND DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING PUBLIC BIDDING 

WHEREAS, the Groveland Community Services District (herein referred to as 
District) is a local government agency formed and operating in accordance with 
Section §61000 et seq. of the California Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, the District has the authority to construct, operate and maintain sources 
of raw water supply for potable water purposes; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District needs to construct a new storage tank and distribution 
pipeline to provide sufficient redundancy during severe drought conditions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District needs to construct a new storage tank and distribution 
pipeline to isolate/reduce the potable water demand from the Second Garrote and 
Alternative Water Supply service areas during serve drought conditions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District needs to construct a new storage tank and distribution 
pipeline will to increase fire resiliency; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Groveland Community Services District has received an Urban 
Multibenefit Drought Relief Grant from the State of California Department of Water 
Resources to fund the Project in whole; and 
 
WHEREAS, the construction of the proposed new storage tank and distribution 
pipeline will have no fiscal impact on the Groveland Community Services District.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE GROVELAND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY 
approve as follows: 
 

1. Authorize Staff to solicit bids for the Potable Water Storage and 
Distribution System Improvements Project. 

 
  

73



WHEREFORE, this Resolution is passed and adopted by the Board of Directors 
of the Groveland Community Services District on December 12, 2023, by the 
following vote: 

 
AYES:  
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT 

 
ATTEST: 

 

 
Rachel Pearlman, Board Secretary 

 
 

 
Nancy Mora, Board President  

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 

I, Rachel Pearlman, the duly appointed and acting Secretary of the Board of 
Directors of the Groveland Community Services District, do hereby declare that 
the foregoing Resolution was duly passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of 
the Board of Directors of the Groveland Community Services District, duly called 
and held on December 12, 2023. 
DATED:    

 

74



 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL_____ 
 
TO:  GCSD Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Jennifer Donabedian, Administrative Services Manager 
 
DATE: December 12, 2023  
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item 6C: Election of Board Officers for Calendar Year 2024  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends the following actions: 
1. Nominate and elect Board President for Calendar Year 2024 
2. Nominate and elect Board Vice President for Calendar Year 2024 
3. Appoint Rachel Pearlman to be the District’s Board Secretary for Year 2024 
 
SUMMARY 
According to Section 3.1 of the Policy Manual of the Board of Directors, adopted by Board 
Resolution 15-04 on December 8, 2004, the Board shall annually elect the Board President and 
Vice President for each calendar year. Normally this is done in December. By Board policy, the 
General Manager or his designee shall perform the duties of Treasurer. These appointments will 
become effective for any meeting held after January 1, 2024.  
 

75


	Agenda 12 12 2023
	AGENDA
	TELECONFERENCE AGENDA
	Call to Order
	Roll Call of Board Members

	Item 3Ai Fire Department Report
	November 2023 Board Report
	2023 GCSD Monthly Call Stats Graph

	Item 3Aii CERT Report
	Item 3Aii CERT Report 2
	Item 3Aii CERT Report

	Item 3Aiv Operations Report
	Item 4A Meeting Minutes 11 14 2023
	Item 4B Meeting Minutes 11 28 2023
	Item 4C Account Payables
	Item 4D Generator Project NOC
	Item 4D Generator Porject NOC_Submital
	BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL

	Item 4D Contractors Application for Payment-Retention - AMCE Executed
	Item 4D Notice of Completion - Generator Project
	Item 4D Generator Project NOC_resolution
	RESOLUTION 53-2023
	NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
	CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY


	Item 4E Pavement Project NOC
	Item 4E Pavement Rehabilitation (Phase 2) NOC_Submital
	BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL

	Item 4E Notice of Completion - Pavement Rehab (Phase 2)
	Item 4E Pavement Rehabilitation (Phase 2) Project NOC_resolution
	RESOLUTION 54-2023
	NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
	CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY


	Item 6A CDBG Subrecipient Agreement
	Item 6A Subrecipient Agreement_Submital
	BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL

	Item 6A CDBG 2023 Subrecipent Agreement FINAL Doc Nov23 (002)
	Item 6A Legal Opinion CDBG Water System Project
	Item 6A Subrecipient Agreement _resolution
	RESOLUTION 55-2023
	NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
	CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY


	Item 6B Potable Water Storage Project
	Item 6B Potable Water Storage and Distribution System Improvements Project_Submital
	BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL

	Item 6B Engineers Estimate - Final Construction
	Item 6B Potable Water Storage and Distribution System Improvements Project_Resolution
	RESOLUTION 56-2023
	CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY


	Item 6C Election of Board Officers for Calendar Year 2024
	BOARD MEETING AGENDA SUBMITTAL_____
	SUMMARY





